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Worcester Regional Transit Authority 

 

Request for Proposals (RFP) #2021-001 

Mobile Fare Payment System 

Issued: December 11, 2020 

Addendum #2 

Issued: January 14, 2021 

The Worcester Regional Transit Authority (WRTA) is issuing this addendum to the above-mentioned 
Request for Proposals (RFP) for the purpose of clarifying and answering questions submitted on or 
before the RFP Questions, Comments, and Requests for Clarification Deadline of December 30, 2020.   

Questions & Clarifications 

Question 1:   Given the extent of the project scope and the fact that this RFP proposal period will 
overlap with the holidays, we request a two-week extension in the due date for these proposals. At a 
minimum, we would ask that WRTA extend the deadline for questions, as many staff members are 
already on leave through the end of December. 

Answer 1: No, the WRTA respectfully denies this request. The WRTA has designed Section 2.1 
Procurement Schedule with the holiday season in mind. It has been determined that the dates listed in 
Section 2.1 Procurement Schedule is an adequate amount of time for an interested vendor to prepare a 
competitive response.  
 
Question 2:  In light of the current global pandemic, will WRTA consider waiving the requirement for 
hard copy submissions and accept only the electronic Adobe PDF version? 

Answer 2:  No, the WRTA respectfully denies this request.  

Question 3:  Can WRTA please provide (a) its total pre-covid annual fare revenue, and (b) a 
breakdown of this total revenue by ticket/pass type? 

Answer 3:   Information regarding the Total FY 2019 Revenue by Ticket/Pass Type below. 

TICKET/PASS TYPE FY 2019 REVENUE ($) 
FAREBOX CASH $1,505,508 
HS STUDENT SWIPE PASSES $1,073 
CHARLIE CARD REDUCED MONTHLY $149,765 
MAGNETIC REDUCED MONTHLY $64,048 
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CHARLIECARD STORED VALUE (REDUCED) $73,815 
PREPAID ONE DAY MAGNETIC $18,461 
CHARLIECARD REGULAR MONTHLY $264,032 
MAGENTIC REGULAR MONTHLY  $141,104 
CHARLIECARD STORED VALUE (REGULAR FARE) $264,684 
PREPAID ONE DAY MAGNETIC (REGULAR FARE) $142,724 
SINGLE RIDE MAGNETIC (REGULAR FARE) $64,537 
HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT SINGLE RIDE $61,218 
COLLEGE UPASS SEMESTER PASS $95,225 

 

Question 4:  Does this solution need to include Demand Response and Via rideshare? 

Answer 4:  No, the MFPS applies to WRTA fixed-route services only. 

Question 5:  Can WRTA please provide the requirements matrix and pricing form in Excel format? 

Answer 5:  The WRTA MFPS Price Proposal Form, and Compliance Matrix have been posted to the 
WRTA website (https://www.therta.com/business-with-wrta/contracting-opportunities/), in the 
requested format. 

Question 6:  Does WRTA have a required or target go live date for the new system? 

Answer 6:  The WRTA has established a target go-live date of Monday, January 3, 2022. 

Question 7:  Is this project being funded by a grant, such as a federal, state, or local grant, or by 
another capital funding source such as the CARES Act? 

Answer 7:  The WRTA was awarded a grant as part of the Fiscal Year 2020 Grants for Buses and Bus 
Facilities Program. The Federal grant funds are for the new mobile fare payment system. 

Question 8:  WRTA has indicated that it is looking for an open architecture system with COTS 
software and hardware as much as possible, yet the RFP lists hundreds of requirements that appear to 
be requesting a system that is designed and developed to specification. Is WRTA open to a platform-
based back-office that provides a significant majority of the capabilities that WRTA is requesting, but is 
not developed specifically for WRTA? 

Answer 8:  Yes, due to the fact that this is a Request for Proposals, not an Invitation for Bid, WRTA 
is open to such a platform. 

Question 9:  Are the "key MFPS requirements" referred to on page 1 of Exhibit G (page 229) the 
same as the "key components" identified in section 1.1.3 Scope of Exhibit F? If not, could WRTA clarify 
what are the "key MFPS requirements”? 

https://www.therta.com/business-with-wrta/contracting-opportunities/
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Answer 9:  The “key MFPS requirements” referred to on page 1 of Exhibit G are the same as the 
“key components” identified in Section 1.1.3 in Exhibit F. Please note that this is a Request for Proposals, 
not an Invitation for Bid, meaning that the Proposer can indicate if the requirements in both Exhibits F 
and G (which are identical, just presented in a different format) can be met as stated, can be met using 
an alternative approach or cannot be met. 

Question 10:  Can WRTA please provide details as to the existing POS systems, both the hardware 
specs and what operating system they use? 

Answer 10:  WRTA currently has three (3) Ticket Vending Machines (TVM), provided and 
manufactured by Scheidt & Bachman (please note that TVMs are NOT being procured via this RFP), two 
(2) Sales Outlet Terminals (SOT), believed to be Toshiba. All software is proprietary to Scheidt & 
Bachman, believed to be operated with Windows XP. There are two (2) credit card machines, each one 
associated with the SOTs and are processed through Bank of America. The three (3) ticket EOutlet 
Terminals are located at the Customer Service Window at the WRTA Hub at 60 Foster Street for public 
use, and the other terminal is located at the WRTA Maintenance and Operations Facility at 42 
Quinsigamond Avenue to process bulk pass orders. 

Outside of the Customer Service Window at the WRTA Hub, as discussed in Section 5.1.1, currently, the 
WRTA manually distributes farecards to selected locations and manually keeps records regarding cards 
distributed, cards purchased, etc., but in the future, the WRTA is interested in implementing an 
automated retail POS system. 

Question 11:  Could WRTA please provide the requirements matrix in excel format? 

Answer 11:  The WRTA MFPS Price Proposal Form, and Compliance Matrix have been posted to the 
WRTA website (https://www.therta.com/business-with-wrta/contracting-opportunities/), in the 
requested format. 

Question 12:  In reference to item 2.6 Bid Bond, could you kindly provide a template for the requested 
Bid Bond? 

Answer 12:  Please refer to Addendum #1. 

Question 13:  The RFP has been written with detailed, prescriptive requirements that are typical of a 
custom designed and developed, design/build system that would be owned and operated by 
WRTA.  This approach will require WRTA staff to review and approve many dozens of Contract Data 
Requirements Lists (CDRLs) and to facilitate an extensive set of design reviews and acceptance tests, 
typically requiring 18 to 24 months from contract signing, and obligating WRTA to pay for any and all 
changes to the approved system design thereafter. Our solution offers an advanced solution for 
electronic fare collection that is offered as a subscription service and provides all required customization 
via configuration, rather than new software design and development. This approach, which has already 
been adopted by many dozens of US transit agencies, eliminates the need for design reviews, 
acceptance tests and expensive change orders for future enhancements. As written, WRTA’s RFP 

https://www.therta.com/business-with-wrta/contracting-opportunities/
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precludes submission of proposals for solutions like ours and it is likely that the current requirements 
will result in a much higher cost, longer implementation schedule and a lack of ability for WRTA to react 
in a timely manner to changes in technology, fare innovations or even more basic requests from WRTA 
executive staff or its board for simple changes to fare policy.  We respectfully request that WRTA allow 
bidders to propose an as-a-service solution for consideration with recognition by WRTA that while such 
solutions should meet the spirit of the requirements defined in the RFP they will not be strictly 
compliant. 

Answer 13: As stated in previous answers and in the Request for Proposals, this is a Request for 
Proposals, not an Invitation for Bid. As such, the Proposer is at liberty to specify whether it can comply 
with the requirements as stated, comply with the requirements using an alternate approach (describing 
the alternate approach), or cannot comply with the requirements. Thus, a Proposer can recommend a 
different approach in order to achieve the overall requirements stated in Section 1.1.3. 

Question 14:  Please provide all required forms and the requirements matrix in an editable (Microsoft 
Word) format. 

Answer 14:  The WRTA MFPS Price Proposal Form, and Compliance Matrix have been posted to the 
WRTA website (https://www.therta.com/business-with-wrta/contracting-opportunities/), in Microsoft 
Excel format. 

Question 15:  Our model and that of other vendors, includes a variable pricing model that is based on 
actual passenger use of the system. This approach aligns the interests of the contractor with that of 
WRTA with both being motivated to increase passenger usage for the duration of the agreement. The 
Price Proposal Form, however, does not accommodate such variable pricing. Please confirm that WRTA 
will allow proposals that include one or more variable price components and that bidders may alter the 
Price Proposal Form as needed to provide such pricing. 

Answer 15: The WRTA will allow such proposals and has revised the Price Proposal Form to 
accommodate that approach to pricing.  

Question 16:  Requirement 13.2-4 states that the contractor must provide a five (5) year warranty, 
implying that the contract term will be at least five years in length, however, the contract term is not 
explicitly stated in the RFP.  Please confirm the proposed contract duration for this procurement? 

Answer 16:  The proposed contract duration for this procurement is five (5) years. 

Question 17:  The Price Proposal Form does not include a line item for the vendor warranty. Please 
provide an updated version of the Price Proposal Form that includes a row for warranty pricing.  

Answer 17:  The Price Proposal Form has been revised to include a line item for the Warranty and 
optional warranty years. 

https://www.therta.com/business-with-wrta/contracting-opportunities/
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Question 18:  The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) section of the RFP (page 29) lists an overall 
goal of 2.6% for DBE participation, however, a project specific goal is not listed. Please confirm if there is 
a specific DBE goal for this procurement. 

Answer 18:  There is no specific DBE goal for this procurement, but the WRTA encourages all 
qualified firms, including Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) and non-DBE women and minority 
owned firms to participate in this procurement. 

Question 19:  Typically, mid-market agencies do not require proposers to supply a bid bond or 
performance bond as it is likely to reduce the number of proposals submitted to the agency and it will 
add cost to each bidder’s proposal. Please confirm if a bid bond and a performance bond are required 
for this procurement. 
 
Answer 19:  Please refer to Addendum #1. 
 
Question 20:  If bid bond and/or performance bonds are required please provide the associated forms 
required by the agency.  
 
Answer 20:  Please refer to Addendum #1. 
 
Question 21:  If a performance bond is required please clarify if the maintenance and warranty years 
are to be included in the bond. 
 
Answer 21:  Please refer to Addendum #1. 
 
Question 22:  Due to COVID-19 restrictions and negative impacts on all of the major delivery services, 
we are requesting that the requirement for hard copy submission of proposals be amended to allow for 
electronic (email) submission.  
 
Answer 22:  No, the WRTA respectfully denies this request. 
 
Question 23:  Exhibit A requires vendors to input a contractor’s license #. Please clarify what licenses 
and/or registrations are required by WRTA for this procurement. If no licenses or registrations are 
required, please confirm that bidders can complete this form by inputting a response of ‘Not 
Applicable’. 
 
Answer 23:  The Contractor’s License # in Exhibit A is not applicable to this procurement. A response 
of ‘Not Applicable’ would be acceptable.  
 
Question 24:  Please provide the following statistical information for WRTA’s system usage for the 
most recently completed fiscal year: 

• Total Ridership for FY 2019  
• Total Sales of each pass broken down by sales channel (i.e. ticket windows, online, 

TVMs, etc.). 
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• Total passenger boardings by payment method used (cash, pass, transfer slip, change 
card, etc.). 

 
Answer 24:  Information regarding the Total Ridership, Total Sales of Each Pass, and Total Use 
Amounts by Pass Method for FY 2019 are listed below. 
 

TOTAL RIDERSHIP FOR FY 2019 
TOTAL RIDERSHIP (FIXED ROUTE) 3,013,268 

 
TOTAL SALES OF EACH PASS BROKEN DOWN BY SALES CHANNEL (FY 2019) 
REGISTER $126,485 
SOT: CASH, DEBIT, & CREDIT $453,166 
TVM $320,341 

 
TOTAL USE AMOUNTS BY PASS METHOD USED 
ONE DAY PASS ADULT 247,703 
ONE DAY PASS ADULT ACTIVATION 39,838 
ONE DAY PASS (E/D) 142,541 
ONE DAY PASS (E/D) ACTIVATION 1,395 
31 DAY PASS ADULT 311,134 
31 DAY PASS ADULT ACTIVATION 6,902 
31 DAY PASS (E/D) 337,048 
31 DAY PASS (E/D) ACTIVATION 6,799 
CASH FREE 41,877 
CASH FULL 491,650 
CASH REDUCED 116,555 
CASH SHORT FARE 89,709 
HIGH SCHOOL PASS 855 
HIGH SCHOOL PASS ACTIVATION 8 
MBTA BLIND ID 2,940 
MBTA DISABLE TAP ID 21,664 
MBTA SENIOR ID 58,978 
MBTA SV ADULT 161,195 
ONE RIDE TICKET 121,979 
OVERPAYMENT TICKET 25,984 
OTHER STUDENT IDS 108 
UNIVERSITY PASS 67,125 
UNIVERSITY PASS ACTIVATION 622 
WSU SEMESTER 86 

 
 
Question 25:  Please confirm if all WRTA vehicles are currently equipped with a cellular modem and 
antenna. If confirmed, please provide the following information about these devices: 
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• Manufacture(s) and type(s) of modems and antennas installed  
• Confirmation that the current data plan for the modem can accommodate additional 

monthly data transfers of up to 100MB per modem  
• The cellular network provider of the current data plan 
• Number of open Ethernet jacks on the modem that can be used by a third-party device 

to access the open Internet. 
 
Answer 25:  The current modem on each fixed route bus is contained within the on-board DIGI 
Router – WR-44R. WRTA have buses equipped with a Clever Devices IVN3 (50 vehicles), IVN4 (2 
vehicles), and IVN5 (5 vehicles). The antenna is a generic 5-wire cable. The current data plan is a mobile 
to mobile plan using shared pooled data between devices. Based on 52 buses and the average use over 
the past three months, the current data plan using 100MB per unit should be adequate, and should be 
monitored accordingly. Verizon Wireless is the current cellular data plan provider. There is a minimum 
of two open Ethernet jacks on the DIGI modems. 
 
Question 26:  Requirement section 6.2.2 specifies that the onboard validators include an "embedded 
cellular communications interface” but use the existing, mobile data routers already installed on WRTA 
buses as the primary means of communication. This approach will obligate WRTA to pay for two data 
plans while only one would be used regularly. Please confirm that WRTA is cognizant of this cost and is 
prepared to pay for a second data plan for each of its in-service vehicles. 
 
Answer 26:  While the fixed-route vehicles have DIGI routers onboard, the routers are not used to 
utilize a second cellular carrier should there be a coverage issue with Verizon Wireless service. 
 
Question 27:  The Price Proposal Form includes a row (2.21) for Communication Interfaces, however, 
it is unclear if this is intended to include only the hardware specified in Section 6.2.2 or if the contractor 
is required to provide data plans for the embedded routers.  Please confirm if WRTA will provide data 
plans for the embedded routers or if the contractor is obligated to provide this service. 
 
Answer 27: Section 2 which contains row 2.21 is for system software and design as it relates to 
Section 6.2.2 in the specifications. The successful Proposer will NOT be required to provide data plans 
for the on-board DIGI routers.  
 
Question 28:  Requirement 5.1.5-2 obligates the Contractor to support integration of WRTA’s existing 
POS system, however, Section 1.1.3 states that the contractor’s scope of work includes deployment of a 
retail point of sale (POS) device and the Price Proposal Form includes a row (3.4) for a price for a Retail 
Sales Terminal and another (3.6) for Retail POS Terminals.  Please clarify if the Contractor is obligated to 
integrate with an existing POS system, providing new equipment and systems or both.  If integration 
with an existing POS system is required, please provide the make and model of all hardware associated 
with the existing system and technical details including any application programming interfaces that are 
supported by the POS system provider. 
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Answer 28: Please see Answer 10 for detailed information about existing POS hardware and 
software. If integration with the current POS hardware and software is possible, Proposers should 
describe that integration in their proposals. If a Proposer feels that it is not possible to integrate with the 
current POS hardware and software, please describe the new POS hardware and software that will be 
necessary to integrate the new POS system with the MFPS back office. Please note that the Price 
Proposal Form has been updated if new POS hardware and software is being proposed in the event that 
integration with the existing POS is not possible.  
 
Question 29:  Requirements 10-2 through 10-11 of the Functional Specifications obligate the 
Contractor to provide training in the field or location of service. Due to current restrictions and risks 
associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, in-person visits and training must be severely limited in order 
to limit potential exposure of WRTA staff as well as that of the Contractor to the coronavirus.  While we 
recognize that such restrictions may be loosened in the future, we respectfully request that this and 
other requirements for in-person events be supplemented with the option for virtual meetings (e.g. web 
conferences) until such time that travel restrictions are lifted and the risks of infection are substantial 
reduced. 
 
Answer 29:  Due to the current COVID-19 Travel Order in Massachusetts, the WRTA accepts this 
request that refers to requirements with in-person events to be either replaced or supplemented with 
optional virtual meetings through various clients such as Zoom, Microsoft Teams, Google Meet, etc.). 
 
Question 30:  Requirements 6.2.3-1 through 6.2.3-6 of the Functional Specifications are obligations for 
the Contractor to perform an integration with WRTA’s existing Clever Devices CAD/AVL system.  These 
requirements define a particular approach to integration without consideration that other solutions may 
be available.  Please confirm that bidders are able to bid alternative solutions, provided that the end 
results meet the spirit of the existing requirements, and those alternative solutions will be considered as 
compliant, subject to approval by WRTA. 
 
Answer 30:  Please see answer to Question 13. 
 
Question 31:  On the price proposal form point 3.1 you ask for total price of 62 Payment validators, at 
point 5.1 you ask for on-board validator installation total price for 62 validators. We can assume no 
spare you require, may you confirm? 
 
Answer 31:  62 units already include spares (56 units for existing vehicles plus 6 spares). 
 
Question 32:  On the price proposal form point 2.22 you ask for CAD/AVL/APC integration, may you 
clarify which kind of integration with APC (Automatic Passenger Counter) you require, and at what 
system level? 
 
Answer 32: The Price Proposal Form has been revised. Line item 2.22 is for CAD/AVL/AVM 
Integration.  
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Question 33:  May you deliver technical specification and company provider of existing IVR? 
 
Answer 33:  Enghouse provided the existing IVR and it utilizes Preditor software. Please note that the 
WRTA has decided to make optional the requirement to integrate with the existing IVR. Revisions have 
made been to Exhibit F (please see Addendum #1), Compliance Matrix, and Price Proposal Form 
accordingly. 
 
Question 34:  May you provide technical specification and interface details (hardware and software) 
of CAD/AVL/AVM in operation? 
 
Answer 34:  The version of CAD/AVL in use is Clever Devices Version 5.70. 
 
Question 35:  Would the WRTA consider a system that met closed loop payment and account-based 
transaction specifications, but did not support open payment options (Contactless credit cards, Google 
Pay, Apple Pay) accepted directly onboard the vehicles? This system would allow users to link Google 
Pay, Apple Pay, and major credit cards to an account, but would require all users to present a WRTA 
card, limited use card, or the mobile app to the validators on board? 

Answer 35:  The WRTA requires that this system supports open payment options as described in the 
specifications and Compliance Matrix. 
 
Question 36:  Although understood that as part of the response to the proposal the bidder will 
provide and be evaluated on a proposed deployment schedule, could the WRTA provide insight on a 
desired deployment schedule. 

Answer 36:  The WRTA has established a target go-live date of Monday, January 3, 2022. 
 
Question 37:  Chapter 1.1.1., On capability to enhance passenger counting by collecting origin and 
destination data, do you need any API to be used by other existing system, or data shall be processed 
and provided an O/D matrix? Can you please explain your needs? Please note that accurate passenger 
counting by collecting origin and destination data can be achieved only by tapping the fare media (cards, 
smartphone) on validators when boarding and at exit. Do you have any indication about this function?  

Answer 37:  The text in Section 1.1.1 that states “…(5) the capability to enhance passenger counting 
by collecting origin and destination data…” has been revised to the following “…(5) the capability to 
enhance passenger counting by collecting more accurate data…”. 

Question 38:  Chapter 1.1.1, About MaaS, do you need in addition in the future to implement 
integrated tariff schemes?  

Answer 38:   It is unknown at this time. 

Question 39:  Req 4.4.1-1 and Req 4.4.1-2, About bike sharing, is GBFS protocol supported by local 
bike companies? 
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Answer 39:   Currently, there is no bikesharing in Worcester. Requirements 4.4.1-1 and 4.4.1-2 are 
optional but the WRTA wants to understand if the Proposer can provide the capability to use the MFPS 
to pay for non-transit mobility services. 

Question 40:  Req 4.4.1-1 and Req 4.4.1-2, How many other transport operators, such as bike sharing, 
can sharing, others, do you need to implement in the future?  

Answer 40:   It is unknown at this time. 

Question 41:  Req 4.4.1-1 and Req 4.4.1-2, Is there any other transport operator (for public transport) 
that shall be integrated in the future?  

Answer 41:   It is unknown if other transport operators (e.g., other Regional Transit Authorities) will 
be added in the future. 

Question 42:  Page 314 Req #6.2.2-4; “Validators will be designed with a spare USB port to support the 
future connection of an ancillary device, such as a barcode reader.” Can WRTA please confirm if the 
barcode reader is an option or a requirement for the validator? 

Answer 42:   A barcode reader is not a requirement. 

Question 43:  Please confirm barcode scanning functionality at the validator is not a requirement. 

Answer 43:   Barcode scanning functionality at the validator is not a requirement as stated in the 
statement “Validators will be designed with a spare USB port to support the future connection of an 
ancillary device, such as a barcode reader.” 

Question 44:  Can WRTA extend the question submission deadline for one (1) week due to the 
holidays? 

Answer 44:   No, the WRTA respectfully denies this request. The WRTA has designed Section 2.1 
Procurement Schedule with the holiday season in mind. It has been determined that the dates listed in 
Section 2.1 Procurement Schedule is an adequate amount of time for an interested vendor to prepare a 
competitive response. 

Question 45:  2.2 Submission of Proposals; Due to the pandemic and people working remotely, will 
you please waive the requirement for proposals be submitted by mail and allow for electronic 
submission of proposals? 

Answer 45:   No, the WRTA respectfully denies this request. 

Question 46:  2.7 Performance Bond; Will the authority accept a Partner Guarantee or other 
assurance instrument in place of a performance bond? 

Answer:   Please refer to Addendum #1. 

Question 47:  2.7 Performance Bond; Will WRTA require the full value of the performance bond until 
final acceptance, or will the requirement diminish in proportion to the work completed? 

Answer:   Please refer to Addendum #1. 
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Question 48:  2.7 Performance Bond; As a point of clarification, the performance bond will no longer 
be required after acceptance of the system, correct? 

Answer:   Please refer to Addendum #1. 

Question 49:  2.6 Bid Bond; Given the performance bond requirement, will WRTA waive the bid 
bond/deposit requirement? 

Answer:   Please refer to Addendum #1. 

Question 50:  2.2.3.1 General Requirements (2.2.3.1-3); What vendor provides the existing 
CAD/AVL/AVM system (onboard communications)? 

Answer 50: Clever Devices.   

Question 51:  2.2.3.1 General Requirements (2.2.3.1-3); What vendor provides the existing APC 
system? 

Answer 51:   APCs are not mentioned in this section. However, WRTA utilizes APC equipment 
developed by InfoDev. 

Question 52:  6.6 Interactive Voice Response (IVR); What vendor provides the existing IVR system? 

Answer 52: Please see Answer 33. 

Question 53:  What is the term of the contract (years)? 

Answer 53:   Five (5) years. 

Question 54:  WRTA Mobile Fare Payment System Procurement Price Proposal Form; The provided 
pricing sheet does not include a line item for payment processing or commission. if the proposer wishes 
to offer a SaaS pricing model can WRTA provide an alternative pricing sheet (or recommendation for 
incorporating these items into the existing sheet)? 

Answer 54:   The Price Proposal Form has been revised to include an area to indicate SaaS pricing. 

Question 55:  What is the project budget? 

Answer 55:   The WRTA has established a total project budget range of $750,000 to $1,000,000. 

Question 56:  When does WRTA require the system go-live? 

Answer 56:   The WRTA has established a target go-live date of Monday, January 3, 2022. 

Question 57:  Proposal Due Date: We request a two-week extension with a revised proposal due date 
of February 12, 2021. 

Answer 57:   No, the WRTA respectfully denies this request. The WRTA has designed Section 2.1 
Procurement Schedule with the holiday season in mind. It has been determined that the dates listed in 
Section 2.1 Procurement Schedule is an adequate amount of time for an interested vendor to prepare a 
competitive response. 
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Question 58:  6.1.2-5; Will the transit account be able to be registered to a customer any time after 
creation? 

Answer 58:  The requirement stated in 6.1.2-5 has been removed as shown in the revised 
specifications and Compliance Matrix. 

Question 59:  6.2.2-2; Is 5G data network support required or is it a nice to have? 

Answer 59:   5G data network support is required as stated in 6.2.2-2. Please note that all WRTA 
fixed-route buses currently have 4G cellular data service. Also, please note that the 3G portion of the 
requirement has been eliminated. 

Question 60:  6.2.3-4; To confirm, each transaction will include two sets of longitude and latitude data, 
one pair from the CAD/AVL/AVM and one pair from the validator? 

Answer 60: That is correct. 

Question 61:  6.1.2-10; In the event of a loss of connection (due to a network outage or something 
outside of the agency and contractor's control), will the customer not be allowed to load value to a 
transit account? 

Answer 61:     As stated in item 6.1.2-10, “The loading of fare value will require a connection to AMPS 
at all times. No loading of value to a transit account will be permitted without an active connection to 
AMPS.” 

Question 62:  1.1.4; The listed warranty period is five years, but you are asking for certain assets to 
have a "useful life" of 15 years. Are you asking for an extended warranty of ten more years for certain 
assets that the contractor will provide? 

Answer 62:     As stated in 1.1.4, “The design and production of the MFPS equipment will be controlled 
by the Contractor to ensure that a high quality, reliable and accurate system suitable for a minimum of 
15 years of service is produced…” No, we are not asking for an extended warranty of ten (10) more 
years. 

Question 63:  6.1.2-11; In other sections, payment aggregation is mentioned in order to reduce 
payment processing fees. Does this requirement require that payment aggregation not be used? 

Answer 63:     No, this requirement does not indicate that payment aggregation not be used. Please 
review Section 2.3.4 - Payment Aggregation and note that Payment Aggregation Design is CDRL 2-12. 

Question 64:  6.1.3-2; Please define a component or provide an example of a component (i.e. a 
handheld device, a printer module, a part in a kiosk, etc.) 

Answer 64:     Since this requirement is part of Section 6.1 – Back Office, and Proposers will be 
identifying a detailed description of all of the hardware components in the back-office hardware design 
document (see 6.1.1-1), the WRTA will determine which of these components will be exempt from the 
requirement stated in 6.1.3-2.  
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Question 65:  6.1.3-3; Does the system monitoring and management platform require a mobile 
application for authorized users? 

Answer 65:    This requirement states “The system monitoring and management platform will be 
accessible in real-time through desktop and mobile client software, or via an internet web browser. Web 
access may have limited functionality for security purposes.” Proposers should include in their proposal 
a description of how they intend to meet this requirement. 

Question 66:  6.1.3-12, 6.1.5; Can WRTA provide APIs and / or documentation for integrating with 
their Salesforce system services? 

Answer 66:  One of the WRTA’s contractors, PBSI, uses Salesforce Enterprise Edition for Customer 
Service complaint tracking and transactions at the Customer Service Window located at the WRTA Hub.    

Question 67:  6.1.7-9; Is there a minimum number of years that records are required to be maintained 
for? 

Answer 67:     Seven (7) years. 

Question 68:  5.1.4-3; Will the Contractor be provided an API for handling account management 
functions from the existing IVR? If so, can this be provided in the agency response in order to estimate 
effort prior to submitting a proposal? 

Answer 68:     The WRTA has made optional the requirement to integrate with the existing IVR. Please 
see Addendum 1 for modifications to the specifications. 

Question 69:  6.6; What will be relationship between the IVR supplied by the Contractor and the 
existing IVR system described in 5.1.4-3? 

Answer 69: Section 6.6 does not require a separate IVR supplied by the Contractor – the 
requirement is to utilize the existing IVR system to provide the required functionality. Proposers should 
describe their approach to utilizing the existing IVR or providing an alternate approach to provide the 
required functionality.     

Question 70:  6.7-2; Will the mobile application initiate the customer service request directly into the 
Salesforce system? 

Answer 70:  Proposers should describe an approach to comply with requirement 6.7-2, including 
initiating a customer service request. 

Question 71:  6.7-3; Can you describe the transaction flow of purchasing a virtual limited-use media 
with NFC technology? 

Answer 71:     Proposers should describe the proposed transaction flow for purchasing a virtual 
limited-use media with NFC technology. 

Question 72:  6.7-3; Can you describe the user flow of fare payment and inspection at a MFPS device 
using NFC Technology? 
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Answer 72:      Proposers should describe the proposed user flow of fare payment and inspection at an 
MFPS device using NFC technology. 

 

 


